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1. Name

historic

San Antonio Casino Club Building

and/or common Casino Club

2. Location

street & number 102 West Crockett Street

—not for publication

city, town San Antonio ____ vicinity of congressional district 20
state Texas code 048 county Bexar code 029
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—district —_ public ____occupied ____agriculture —_ museum
___ building(s) _X_ private ____ unoccupied X__ commercial ___park
_X_ structure ___both _X_ work in progress ____ educational X__ private residence
—— e Public Acquisition Accessible —_ entertainment —religious
—_ object ___in process —___yes: restricted —__government —_ scientific
___ being considered ___ yes: unrestricted —_industrial ____transportation
—___no — military —other:
4. Owner of Property
name Mr. Arthur P. Veltman, Jr.
street & number 316 North Presa Street
city, town San Antonio ____ vicinity of state Texas
5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. ~ Bexar County Courthouse
street & number Main Plaza
city, town San Antonio state 1€XAS
6. Representation in Existing Surveys
San Antonio Historic Survey;
titte  Historic Sites Inventory has this property been determined elegible? X yes ____no
date 19725 1979 ____federal X _state ___ county _X local

depository for survey records City of San Antonio Preservation Officer; Texas Historical Commission

city, town San Antonio; Austin

state

Texas




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one
___excellent ____deteriorated _X__ unaltered _X__ original site
—X— good 2 ruins — altered — moved date
— T —___ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Representing the Texan architectural tradition of combined styles, the Art Deco massing and
unique shaping of the Casino Club Building compliments the detailed decorative elements bor-
rowed from Mayan culture.

The brown brick over poured concrete building rises six stories above a basement and feat-
ures a distinguished front tower and special decorative on the first and sixth floor facades.
An outstanding feature of the building is its flatiron shape; a sensitive response to the
shape of the city block and its relationship to the San Antonio River bordering the building.
The primary visual emphases are the verticality and flared side elevations from the main en-
trance elevation. Paired, vertical window openings and the surmounting domed tower disting-
uishing the entrance elevation augment the visual interest. Except on the first and sixth
floors, where eight-over-eight windows are found, fenestration consists of one-over-one sashes.
The crowned appearance of the front tower, the detailed concrete castings which ornament the
crest of the sixth floor, the tower terraces, and the first floor level compliment the stream-
lined midsection of the body. Such stylization is typical of Art Deco architecture.

The interior boasts a collection of elegant rooms dedicated to the public function of the San
Antonio Casino Club, such as game rooms, banquet halls, a ballroom, and dormitory space.
Hardware furnishings and woodworked trim were elaborate in detail and of fine materials. Many
of the interior elements were borrowed from each of the Club's previous homes. Ceiling and
frieze treatments of stencilled patterns were employed to add elegance and visual appeal to
the public functions of such a prestigious social environment as the San Antonio Casino Club.

The exterior and interior materials existing today are remnants of the original architectural
fabric of the 1927 construction. Four large gilt mirrors once decorated the ballroom. Report-
edly, they had earlier adorned the Astor House in New York.

The existing material coloring was the original color scheme. Only discoloration by the nat-
ural aging process in urban siting has had any effect. The interior arrangement is fairly
consistent with the original layout despite reuse of rooms for other purposes. Occaisional
flimsy partitions were used to divide dormitory spaces during its more recent use as a Youth
Hostel. Plans for extensive interior remodeling in 1931 were never executed due to loss of
financing opportunities during the Depression.

Currently, interior conversion for forty apartments is underway. This project is one of the
largest efforts in the locally designated historic district to encourage the development of
a residential community in the downtown area. The ground and river level of the building
will be converted to seven retail spaces following the existing commercial trend of adaptive
reuse of the other buildings along the San Antonio River Walk.




8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —__conservation — law —_science

—1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —_literature ___ sculpture

___1600-1699 X ___ architecture ____education ____ military X__ social/

— 1700-1799 ____art —___engineering —___ music humanitarian

——1800-1899 ____ commerce —exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

A 1900- . communications — industry __ politics/government ___ transportation
" ___invention ’ ____ other (specify)

Specific dates 1927 Builder/Architect Ke lwood Companv

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The San Antonio Casino Club Building, completed in 1927, is a visually unique structure in
its combined Art Deco and Mayan architectural styling. Mayan detailing, found primarily in
the cast concrete motifs and the stairstepped central tower, represents an unusual style in
Texas borrowing from the architectural ancestry of its Mexican-Mayan neighbors. The rear of
the building fronts the San Antonio River Walk lending an historic charm through detail,
scale, and positioning to the winding river. Two local social clubs established in the 19th
c?ntury in Texas, merged in 1925 and collaborated to construct this building as an elegant
clubhouse. , :

The original purpose of this building recognized a rich cultural heritage of the affluent
German-Texan and the well-educated Anglo-Texan elites of the 19th century. Their collaborat-
ion of purpose and dedication to aesthetic and social communion was notable as their cultural
inheritance was different. The design and construction of the San Antonio Casino Club is a
significant monument reflecting the mergance of two venerable institutions.

In 1854 the original Casino Club was established in San Antonio by German-San Antonians as a
social club. This club basically served the cultural entertainment needs such as theaters,
games, dances, and meetings. The San Antonio Club formed in 1881 "for literary purposes...
social intercourse...convenience of a clubhouse." Its functions included game rooms, ladies'
parlor, dormitory rooms, and opera productions. In 1925 the two clubs merged.

Construction began in 1926 for the provision of a facility to serve the two clubs. Archit-
ectural work was executed by the Kelwood Company. Construction was contracted to Heath and
Kinsey Construction Company. The furnishings and fixtures from the San Antonio Club were
transfered to the new building. Partial leasing for office spaces of the upper floors gen-
erated more complete use of the building. Newspaper accounts of the building valued it at
$250,000 in 1927. However, as the Depression years began to destructively affect the Club's
financial status, the building was reposessed and sold in public auction for $114,000 in 1940
to Henry Caulfield of St. Louis, Missouri. The building passed through several owners until
1942 when it was sold to the Thomas Gilcrease Western Collection and used as headquarters for
the Gilcrease 0il Company. In 1952 it was sold to C. B. Erwin and General American Casualty
Company for insurance offices.

Gradual decline of use emptied the building for nearly a decade; infrequent use by transient
visitors and a short Tived Youth Hostel provided inexpensive lodging during the 1968 World's
Hemisfair.

In 1978 the Casino Club Limited acquired the building and has sought to revitalize the
building's use as residences (upper floors) and retail space (ground and river levels).
Both concepts are deemed appropriate as full day and night use of the locally designated
historic destrict has been encouraged.



9. Major Bibliographical References
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Verbal boundary description and justification A ¥ :
Bounded north by Crockett Street, south by River Square Building, east by San Antonio River,
and west by North Presa Street. Legal Lots 4, 6, and 6 1/2, NCB 148.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code" county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Lenora Brown Rickards, Research Associate

organization Texas Historical Commisssion date  August 21, 1979
512-475-3095

street & number P.0. Box 12276 . telephone

city or town Austin, o TE)EaS

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—_ national _X_ state —local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the Natio
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the Nationa
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Herita

y ]

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

LN :
tile  Texas State Historic Preservation Officer date Pugust 24, 1979

GPO 938 835
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NOV-Z 0 1979
San Antonio Casino Club Building
102 West Crockett Street
San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas

Photo by Carol Kennedy, Texas Historical
Commission, 1979

Northeast oblique

Photo #1
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NOV 2 ¢ 1579
San Antonio Casino Club Building
102 West Crockett Street
San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas

Photo by Carol Kennedy, Texas Historical
Commission, 1979

Northwest oblique

Photo #2
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. . ... NOV 201979
San Antonio Casino Club Building
102 West Crockett Street
San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas

Photo by Carol Kenmy, Texas Historical
Commission, 1979

Southwest oblique

Photo #3






NOV 2 0 1979
San Antonio Casino Club Building
102 West Crockett Street

San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas

Photo by Carol Kennedy, Texas Historical
Commission, 1979

Window detail

Photo #4
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ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER
STATE IEXAS

Date Entered MN 8 HS’O

Name Location
White-Pool House Odessa
Ector County
‘ San Antonio Casino Club Building San Antonio
Bexar County
Haden House Ladonia
Fannin County
Roper Hotel . Marble Falls
Burnet County
Bcardman-Webb—Bugg House Austin

Travis County

Also Notified

Honorable Lloyd M. Bentsen

Honorable John G. Tower State Historic Preservation Officer
Honorable Richard C. White Mr. Truett Latimer
Honorable Henry B. Gonzalez Executive Director
Honorable Sam B. Hall, Jr. Texas State Historical Cormission
lonorable James M. Leath P.0. Box 12276, Capitol Station
Honorable J. J. (Jake) Pickle Austin, Texas 78711
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